GARUD  Associates

CHARTERETHD ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT

T'o the Members of AV International Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AVA International Private Limited {*‘the
Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Lquity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policics and other explanatory informaton (hereinafter referred to as "the financial
statements').

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
atoresaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies .Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view mn conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind ASY) specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Rules 2015 and other accounting principles
pencrally aceepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, its profit
mcluding other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ('SA’s) specified under section
L13(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilides for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Hithics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the finartcial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilied our other
cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Lithics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our OPINEON,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thercon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the mformation included in the Dircctors Report but does not include the financial
staternents and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not eXpress
any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatemnent of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is
obtained at the date of this auditor’s repott.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these {inancial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for saleguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequale
internal financial controls, that were operating cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it cxists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or crror, design and perform audir procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from crror, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

+  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* livaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the rcasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriastencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidenee obtained, whether a material uncerlainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the mpany’s ability to continue as a going concern.




If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we arc required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
audrtor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
a8 a going concern.

* livaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements tepresent the undetlying transactions and events in
a manncr that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstaternents in the Statement that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Statement may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating (he results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Statement,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
saleguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure
A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Scction 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposcs of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Liquity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

(¢} On the basis of the writien representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Scction 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial staternents
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
‘Annexurec B’ Our report cxpresses an unmodificd opinion on the adequacy and operating
cffectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial repotting,

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opmmion and to the best of our
information and according to the cxplanations given to§ & ASTS




L The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements
as at 31 March 2025,

if. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025.

1ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection 'und by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025,

1v. (a) The Management has represented that, (o the best of its knowledge and belief, no  funds
(which are material cither individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or cntity, including forcign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, direcdy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities 1dentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiarics™) or provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been reccived by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantce, secutity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(c), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

W "The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, , the Company, in respect of [inancial
year commencing on 1 April 2024, has used an accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. 1furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

(h) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance under section
197(16) of the Act, the provision of this section is not applicable to Private Company.

For G AR U D & Associates
{(Vormerly known ar Raj Girikshit & lisociutes)
Chartered Accountants

Membership No.:
Placc: Delhi
Date: 18109/2025

UDIN: 25518 698BMIFDXEY 73
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the Finanaal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, based on the audit procedures
performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Iinancial Statements of the Company
and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and
other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
we report that:

(1) I respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Hquipment and Intangible assets:

(a) (\) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B} The Company do not have any Intangible Assets.

(b)  The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the vear and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
trequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets.

) According to the information, explanation and representaton provided to us and based on
verification careied out by us the Company does not own any immovable property including
investment properties are held i the name of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable o the Company.

(d)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and liquipment or intangible assets during
the vear.

(¢)  According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification catried out by us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactons (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, repotting under clause 3(i)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

i fa According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by s, the management has conducted physical verification of
inventory at reasonable intervals during the year and no material diserepancies between
physical inventory and book records were noticed on physical verification.

by According 1o the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial insttutions on the basis of
securtty of current assets. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

1it) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
vertlication earried out by us, the Company has not made any investment in, granted any
loans, provided any guarantee ot security ot granted any advances in the nature of loans,
sccured or unsecured and to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other

parties.
Guardian In financial matters 6 . 011-43045353
Accountable to commitment M info@garudassociates.in
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According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has no loans and investments made, and no
guarantees and securtity provided by it.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not accepted deposits or deemed deposits to
which the directives issued by the Resetve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the rules framed there under, are applicable. Accordingly, reporting under
para 3(v} is not applicable.

'I'o the best of our knowledge and as cxplained to us, the Central Government has not
specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in
respect of Company's products / services. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other rnaterial statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. [urther, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding, at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in subclause (a) above that have not
been deposited with the appropriate authoritics on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
cxamined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
196143} of 1961), that has not been recorded in the books of account.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Cornpany has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or
borrowings and intetest thereon payable to any banks and other lenders. The Company does
not have any borrowings from financial institutions or government.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and wtitten representation
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
mstitution or other lender.

According to the records of the Company cxamined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly,
reporting under para 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the records of the Company cxamined by us and the information and
cxplanations given to us, we report that no funds raised by the Company on short term basis
have been utilised for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of of to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly,
clause 3fix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. SEAS
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According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, the Company has no subsidiary during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanaton and tepresentation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, during the year, the Company has not made private placement
of compulsory convertible debentures. In our opinion and according to the information and
esplanations given to us, the Company has complied with the requirements of section 42 and
section 62 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder with respect to the same. [further, the
amounts so raised have been utilized by the Company for the purposes for which these funds
were raised. During the vear, the Company did not make preferential allorment of shares or
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and cxplanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the vear, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companics Act has been filed in Form
ALYT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 arc not applicable to it.
Accordingly, repotting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with 188 of the Act.
Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified in Companics {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the
Companics Act 2013,

The Company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit. Accordingly,
clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance
with the provisions of scction 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1\ of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of )x?eq.{? not applicable




(xvii)

(xvili)

(xix)

(x%)

(xx1

/

(b)

(c)

The Company is not trequired to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

‘T'he Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the curtent financial year 2024-25 and during
immediately preceding financial year.

‘I'here has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial asscts and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities cxisting at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one vear from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

According o the information and explanations given to us, The Company does not fulfil the
criteria as specified under scction 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies {Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause (xx) of the
Otrder is not applicable to the Company.

This is a Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company, Thercfore Clause 3(xx1) of
the order is not applicable to the Company.

For GARUD & Associates
Vormerly fenown av Raj Givikahit € <lssqviafes)
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Begistration Number.: 022280N
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Gaurav'Goyal )
Partner

Membership No.: 518698

Place: Delhi

Date: 15/09/2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

With reference to the Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of
the Company on the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025 of even date.

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statemnents of Innovatiview
Rental Solutions Private Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial staiements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Intemnal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
constdering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over FFinancial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Insttute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the TCAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and mantenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of 1ts assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of (he accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
1o these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, and the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate  internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of mternal financial controls with reference to these financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluaung the design and operating effectivencss of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or etror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basts for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

ON-43045353
info@garudassociates.in

Guardian In financial matters
Accountable to commitment
RebIshsolfions 1124, First Floor, Surya
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Disciplined in all we do New Delhi - 10001
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Mecaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial conirols with reference to these financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's asscts
that could have a material effect on the fmancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
matcrial misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements to futurc
periods are subject to the risk that the intemnal financial controls with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements and such controls were operating effecdvely as at 31 March
2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of intetnal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the
[CAL

For G AR U D & Associates
(Formerly known as Raj Girikshit & Associates)

Chartergd Accountants
Firm'y Registration mbet.: 022280N
. :&’c‘/\
7\
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Pariner

Membership No.: 518698
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AVA INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN NO: U29304DL2019PT C358300
Standalone Balance Sheet as aw March 31, 2025

Vil omvisnity s ANR miflinss | mufens atfernyw dated)

Particubars Notes As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plnt and cquipment 5 017 1303
Right ol use asscis
[ﬂ\L.‘lln{‘ﬂ[ !‘]‘“P‘.le 6 74.45 5()‘33
Tivanetal assers
(r Investments 7 (1564 .50
() Laoans 10 8.51
i) Othier naneil assets 11 0.48 .88
Dyclerred s assers net 14 3.43 07
96.54 77.90
Current assets
Tnientories 13 PLn.49 6297
Fmancral assees
(1 Trade recenables 8 120.64 48.34
it} Cashe anud cash equivalents 9 392 5.H1
1t Loans 14 123.50 58.12
1w COndier finmenal asscts 1 149
Odher current asscis 2 21,54 155.97
bsscts held for sak 15 4773 47.73
428.31 379.87
Total Assets 524.85 457.77
LQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LQUITY
Faquaty shure capntal I (108 (.10
Orther cquty 17 407,82 IUH.R2
407.90 398.92
LIABILITIES
Non-current liahilities
Prorvisione 22(a) 357 1.96
3.57 1.96
Cureent Habilities
inanenl bt
o Borrowines 18 7140 o0
w Trade pavables 1
I'oal oulstainding dues ol niero enterprises and soall enterprises; and 13.63
Totl outatanding ducs of ceeditors other than micro cnterprtse and small enlerprises 10.64 Ra1
e Ovthe e Nl fabsluies 20 1.52 1.6v
Cnher current Balnles = 13.38 2168
HROU s 2204 103 th
Current uis bl (ot 24 (10,27 206
113.38 56.59
Total Bquity and Liakilities 524.85 457.77
Summary of significant accounting policies 14

e aeetmipanymg notes including summary of matenal secouning policics and other explmatory information forn an

shatenments.

For G AR UD & Assoviates

Jrormuedy known as Rig Grrkshar & \ssueiates)

Chartereg Accountants

Firan |

Cistration No.: (22

v

F ALY )1

NDIA o

Ganedy Goydl 3

Partnel
Membership No, 518698

Plece Dell

ac 151091202,
v 2551 869 8aMIPDXSY 73

inzegral past of the standalone financial

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
AVA International Private Limited

Aniredh Buansal
Ditector
DIN: 08740907

A

'rr.f\l\shil' Mittal
Iirector

DIN: 09572156



AVA INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN INO: U29304DL2019PTC358300

Standalone statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(A cmoinits ie INR miiliions, andess othermise stated)

=iy Year ended Year ended
Hamict Dicies 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
INCOME
Revenue frony operations 23 367.90 203.26
Other meome 24 16.35 15.69
Total income 384.24 218.95
EXPENSES
Cost of naternals consumed 25 344.63 175.00
Change in inventornes of stock in trade 26 {47.52) (35.07)
Fmplovee benefits expense 2 37.65 33408
Fmance costs 28 4.98 2.57
Deprectation and amortisation expense 29 6.87 747
Ohther expenses 30 24.47 16.88
Total expenses 371.08 199.65
Profit before tax for the year 13.17 19.31
Tax expense
(:Ul'l'(.'l]l rax 31 2.26 1,_46
Dettered tax 14 (0.41) (.67}
Profit for the year A 11.31 15.51
Other comprehensive incomes

Itenas that will not be recassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilisy 0.21 0.1

Deltered tax 0.05 005
Total other comprehensive incame B 0.16 0.16
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 11.47 15.67
Earnings/ (Loss) per share (of ¥ 10 each):
Buasic and diluted carning,/(loss) per share (in Rs 39 1,307 1,551
Summary of significant accounting policics 14

The accompanving notes including summarn of material accounting policics and other explanatory mformaton form an mregeal part of the standalone

{anctal statements.

For G AR UD & Associates

Formerly known as Ry Giekshie & Associares)

2

Chartered Accountants

: 2
s 38
b
<
* INDIA
\ S\
Gauray I
Partner Ld Act

Membership No. 518698

Place: Delly

Date: 1510912028

UDIN: 5 $S18698 RMIPIXSYHD

21

On behalf of the Board of Directors of

AVA International Private Limited

| |

Anirudh Bansal
Ditector
DIN: 08740907

Akshit Mittal
Director
DIN: 09572156



AVA INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN INO: U29304DL2019PTC358300

Standalonc statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Ai amronnts in INR millions, mnless othermise stated)

S

Particulars Yecar ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 13.17 19.50
Adjustments for:
Dyeprecation and amortisation expense 6.87 7.17
Provision for Gratuity and Varned Teave 1.63
lnterest expenses 4.98 2.57
Interest meome on fixed deposits and Inter-corporate Lean
Mlowance for expected credit losses -
Operating Profit/ (Loss) before working capital changes: 26.64 29.24
Movement in working capital
Dyecrease/ ncrease) m trade receivables (72.30) 63.20
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets (0.09}
Dyecrease/ Increase) in other assets 135.44 102.1H))
Decrease/ Increase) in Loans & Advances (73.89) .76
Deerease/ (Increase) in Inventories (47.52) (35.007)
Deerease/ (Increase) in lnvestment Property (15.12 (17.06}
(Decrease)/ Increase in Trade Payables 15.73 (7.22
Iecrease) Tnerease in other financial habilities (0.17) [N
(Decrease) /Tnerease in other current and non-current liabilities (8.30 14.81
Drecrease) /Increase n Short Term Borrowings 52.40 17.60
Drecrease) 'Tacrease in Provisions 1.06) 1.07
Cash utilised in opesating activities 11.75 10.34
Income 1axes pad 5.02 0,42
Net cash utilised in operating activitics (A) 6.73 3.92

B Cash flow from investing activitics
Purehase of property, plant and equipment and intangihle assets (2.93) (0.55)
Interest Hamed on bank depaosits
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (2.93) (0.55)

. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds trom long wenin borrowings 1.35)
Interest paid (4.98) {2.57)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) (4.98) (3.92)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1.18) (0.54)
Cash and cash cquivalents ar the beginning of the vear (refer note 9) 3.11 5.65
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year (refer note 9) 3.92 5.11
Notes: As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

a. Cashand cash equivalents include (refer note 9%
Cash on hand .00 0.02
Balances with banks in current accounts 3.92 5.09

3.92 5.11




AVAINTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN NO: 12930411.2019P°1'C358300

Stundalone statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(.U comioints i ENTR paiflions, nudess othenwise stated)

b, Amendment to Ind AS 7:

There are no non-cash changes in habilities arising from financing activities.

¢. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indireet Methad™ as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 (Ind A8-7) on “Statement of

Cash Flows™.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes including summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information form an integzal part ot the standalone
Bnanctal statements.

For G AR U I & Associates On behalf of the Board of Directors of
(Formerly known as Rag Girikshit & Assocmres AVA International Private Limpited

@ﬂ -

Aniradh Bansal Akshit Mittal
Director Ditcctor
DIN: 08740907 DIN: 09572156

Chartered Accountants
Firm Rggistration No.: 022280N

Partner

Membership No. 518698

Pace: Delba

[Jate: 1&!09 '9’02&{

UDIN: 9 €€ 1 849% BMIPOXSYTF3



AVA INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN NO: U29304D1.2019PT C358300

Standalone stutement of changes in cquity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(K wmansends in INR millions, unfess otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

Particulars Amount

As at 31 March 2023 0.10
Changes in cquity share capital -
As at 31 March 2024 0.10
Chunges in equity share capital {(.03;
As at 31 March 2025 0.07

B Other Equiwy

Particulars Reserves and surplus Total
Retained earnings
Balance as at 31 March 2023 383.16 383.16
Add: Profit for the vear 15.50 15.50
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 0.16
0.16

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

[ssue of cquity shares i
Balance as at 31 March 2024 398.82 398.82
Add: Profie for the vear 11.31 11.31
Add: Other comprehensive income for the vear (net of tax) ir16 0.16
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Issuce of cquity shares (2.48) (2.48)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 407.82 407.82

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes including summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information form an integral part of

the standalone financial statements.

For G AR U D & Associates
(Formerly known as Raj Girkshit & Assoctates)
Charterged Accountants

dgistration No,:

I'irm

Gau
Partner
Mcmbership N
Mace: Delhs
[Jate: |SIDQI20 ZS .
UDIN: 9. ¢S L8698 BMIFAPX SHS

Goyal

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
AVA Intcernational Private Limited

g\

Aniradh Bansal
Director
DIN: 08740907

Akshit Mittal
Director
DIN: 09572156




AVA Intetnational Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amonnts in INR millions, unless stated otherwise)

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to Standalone Financial
Statements

1. Corporate information

The Standalone Financial Statements comprise financial statements of AVA International Private Limited (“the
Company”) (CIN:- U29304DL2019PTC358300) for the yeat ended 31 March 2025. The Company is domiciled in
India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India. The Company’s
registered office is located at KH NO. 390, Ground Floor, Village Alipur, North West Delhi, Delhi, India, 110036.

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the standalone financial statement.

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies, set out
below and were consistently applied to all periods presented unless otherwise stated. They have been prepared
under the assumption that the Company operates on a going concern basis, which assumes the Company will be
able to discharge its liabilities as and when they fall due.

Presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013, "as amended”, as applicable
to the Standalone IYinancial Statements have been followed.

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company.

The revision to the financial statements is permitted by the Board of Directors after obtaining necessary approvals
or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per the provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments and
defined benefit liabilities that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period and Equity settled
ESOP at grant date fair value, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency
and all values are rounded to the necarest million, except when otherwise indicated. The number 0° in Standalone
Financial Statements denotes amount less than INR 0.5 million.

3. Material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone
financial statements. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, to
the extent applicable.

a) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. I‘or each business combinaton, the Company elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the propottionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related-casts ate cxpensed in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services

"‘J_/L,_,,-‘ et



AVA International Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(AU amounts in INR millions, unless stated otherwise)

are received, with the exception of the costs of issuing debt or equity securities that are recognised in accordance
with Ind AS 32 and Ind AS 109.

The Company determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired process is considered substantive if it is ctitical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the
inputs acquired include an organised wotkforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique
or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing
outpudis.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in
a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

® Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
tespectively.

* Potential tax cffects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or atise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12,

*  Assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current
Asscts 1eld for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in Profit and Loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of
Ind AS 109 Financial Instcuments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit and
loss in accordance with Ind AS 109. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS and shall be recognised in profit and loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequently its
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired
and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration trapsfetred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital

(=Y,
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AVA International Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(A amonnts in INR millions, unless stated otherwise)

reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in
equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash genetating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each assct in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit and loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Whete goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or
additional assets or liabilitics are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date.
These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one
year from the acquisition date.

b) Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
A subsidiaty 1s an entity that is controiled by another entity.

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Company’s investments in its subsidiaries and associate are accounted at cost less impairment.
Impairment of investments
The Company treviews its cartying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently when there

is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss 1s
recorded i the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the Investment is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the cost of
the Investment. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss.

c} Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Standalone Financial Statements based on current/ non-
current classificalion. A\n assetis treated as current when it is:
»  Lixpected to be feilisedofintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyele

! \
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AVA International Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements fot the yeat ended 31 March 2025

(AU amounts in INR millions, unless stated otherwise)

d)

® Held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ Dxpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

® Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
* [tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other labilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash cquivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Fair valuc measurement
The Company measures financial instraments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordetly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or hiability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant obsetvable inputs and minimising the use of
unocbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilitics for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurementas a-wWhole:

¥ 7t
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AVA International Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(A amounts in INR millions, unless stated otherwise)

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

® level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly obsetvable

¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that ate recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occutred between levels in the hietarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
repotting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring
measurement, such as assets held for sale in discontinued operations.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial
assets, and significant liabilides, such as contingent consideration.

For the putpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Revenue from contract with customets

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods of services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that teflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be eatitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
tevenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods ot setvices before transferring them to the
customer.

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the equipment.

The Company considets whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction
ptice tor the sale of goods, the Company considers the cffects of variable consideration, the existence of
significant financing components, and considetation payable to the customer (if any).

(1) Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estmates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

(1) Ssgnificant financing component

If there is a significant {inancing component considering the length of time between the customers’ payment
and the transfer of the®gootiS deservices, as well as the prevailing interest rate in the market, the transaction



AVA International Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(AL anzounts in INR millions, nniess stated otherwise)

price for these contracts is discounted, using the interest rate implicit in the contract (ie., the interest rate that
discounts the cash selling price of the goods or services to the amount paid). This rate is comtnensurate with
the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Company and the customer at
contract inception.

The Company applies the practical expedient for shott-term advances treceived from customers. That is, the
promised amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component if the
period between the transfer of the promised good or service and the payment is one year or less.

Contract balances

Contract assets

-\ contract asset is initially recognised when the receipt of consideration is conditional. Upon completion of the
underlying conditions, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial
assets in section t) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivable 1s recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section
(p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due {whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

The Company assesses the timing of the transfer of services to the customer as compared to the timing of
payments to determine whether a significant financing component exists, As a practical expedient, the
Company does not assess the existence of a significant financing component when the difference between
payment and transfer of deliverables is a year or less. For contracts where the petiod between the transfer of
the promised services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year, the Company adjusts
transaction prices for the time value of money, if considered necessary.

f) Taxes
‘Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax.
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and labilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorides. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Cutrent tax items are recognised in cotrelation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management petiodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall
reflect the effect of uncertamty for cach uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method ot expected
value method, depending on which umethod predicts better resolution of the treatment.
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AVA International Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mazch 2025

(Al amonnts in INR millions, nnless stated otherwise)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax Hability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences

® In respect of taxable temporary differences assoclated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the tming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the inital
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences

¢ In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaties, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be uiilised

‘The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset 1s realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in cotrelation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition
at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired
deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if
they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the
carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve
depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains., All other acquired tax benefits realised are
recognised in profit or loss.

The Company offscts deferred-tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current taxiasbets andcurrent tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
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2

h)

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entdty or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
labilitics or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Non-cutrent asset held for sale and discontinued operations

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal Company’s as held for sale if their carrying amounts
will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use.

Non-current assets and disposal Company’s classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to
the disposal of an asset (disposal Company), excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset
or disposal Company is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the
sale/ distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the
decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale and the sale expected within one
vear from the date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when
the exchange has commercial substance, The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when
the assets or disposal Company is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal Company’s), its sale is highly probable; and it
will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset or disposal Company to be highly
probable when:

* The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal Company),

*  Anactive programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

® The asset (or disposal Company) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation
to its current fair value,

® lhe sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification, and

* Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible are not depreciated, or amortised assets once classified as held for
sale.

Assets and labilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items in the balance sheet.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as 2 single
amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Plant and equipment are
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and botrowing costs for long-term construction projects
if the recognition criteriaareimet. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Compafl depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major
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inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition critetia are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its
use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written down value method prescribed
under Schedule IT of the Act, computed on the basis of useful lives prescribed under Schedule 1T which are
mentioned below:

Tangible asscts Useful life (years)

Plant and Machinety 15 years

Office equipment 5 years

Building (Temporary Structure) 3 years
Computers/ IT Equipment 3-6 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Leasehold improvements 7 years (life based on lease period)

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
certain items of building, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful
life prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013. The management belicves that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The Company reviews the estimated residual values and expected useful lives of assets at least annually.

An item of propetty, plant and cquipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortsation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives arc amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisadon period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected uscful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
cconomic benefits embedigks the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are frepted afc%a}t)ges in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets
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with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assesstnent of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite 1s made on a prospective basis.

An intangible assct is derecognised upon disposal (Le., at the date the recipient obtains control} or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of
the assct (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the catrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Rescarch and development cost

Rescarch costs are expensed as incutred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as
an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

e  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

* I intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

¢ llow the asset will generate future economic benefits
e The availability of resources to complete the asset
-

‘The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amordsed over the period of expected future
benefit. Atnortisation expense is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment
annually.

Bortrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

k) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That 1s, if the contract
conveys the right to conirol the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideraton.
Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shoit-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-
of-usc assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (le., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurctnent of lease liabilities. The cost of tight-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease labilities recognised, initial direct costs incurted, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

[f ownership of the right-of-use asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciaton is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The nght-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (p)
Impairinent of non-financtal assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the excrcise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exetcised by the Company and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(unless they arc incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the catrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) ot a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the undetlying asset.

n) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applics the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery,
building, warchouses and related facilities (i.c., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the tisks and rewards incidental to ownership

of an asset s classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a strajght-line basis over

the leasc terms. Initial direct costs incutred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the

carrying amount of the right-of-use and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Contingent rents are recogps evenue in the period in which they are earned.
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Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from
the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are tecorded as receivables at the
Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

In respect of traded goods, cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
necessary to make the sale,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting dare, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is requited, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(CGL) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the assct does not generate cash inflows that are latgely independent of those from other
assets or Companys of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, tecent tnarkel transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corrobotated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies ot other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for cach of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/ forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections
in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country or countries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impaitment on inventories, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and LLoss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’ recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss s reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the [ast impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed ils_gecoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depre@tiéIond no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in priof years.
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Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or Company of
CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than it's carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at the CGU level, as appropriate,
and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

It the cffect of the time value of money is material, provisions ate discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision duc to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Onerous contracts

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the
Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Company cannot
avoid because it has the contract) of mecting the obligations under the contract exceed the cconomic benefits
expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting
from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (j.e.,
both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).

Contingent liability
Contingent liability is-
* apossible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed otly by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or

® apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because

* itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation or

*  the amount of thaehligfion cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses the same as per the requirements of Ind
AS 37.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it
is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the tequirements for
provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumnulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

Contingent Asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by- the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity. The Company does not recognize the contingent asset in its financial statements since this may result
in the recognition of income that may never be realised. Where an inflow of economic benefits are probable,
the Company disclose a brief description of the nature of contingent assets at the end of the reporting petiod.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and
the Company recognize such assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets ate reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
Retitement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. The
Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable to the Regional provident Fund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which is unfunded. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined wsing the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements,
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the eatlier of:
* T'he date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

®  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the defined benefit lability. The Company recognises

the following changes in the defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and

Loss:

¢ Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and

¢ Netinterest expense

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company
recognises expected costiol short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service.
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The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are
tmmediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and ate not deferred. The obligations are presented as
current liabilities in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives tise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or foss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (f) Revenue from
contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through QCI, it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the ptincipal amount
outstanding. ‘Lhis assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows while financial asscts classified and measuted at fair value through OCI are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivety of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
*  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

* [inancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

*  Jinancial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition {cquitg-instruments)

A
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* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘financial asset” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the assct give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

‘This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking inro account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)

A ‘hinancial asset” is classified as at the FVT'OCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCIL. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or
loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity insttuments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCT when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading, The classification is determined on an
insttument-by-instrument basis. Equity insttuments which ate held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVIPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

|
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‘Lhis category includes derivative instruments, if any, and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the
host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives
arc measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Derecognition
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.c. removed from the Company’s Standalone Financial Statements) when:

® The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

® The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and cither (a) the Company has transferred substantally all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferted asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company
could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss,
loans, botrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities ace recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.
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Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categoties:

*  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
® Financial habilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit ot loss

Iinancial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilitics designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

I'inancial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVIPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/
losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-beating loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities ate derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impaitment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially differem;'terms,
7 -~
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AVA International Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amounts in INR miillions, unless stated otherwise)

or the terms of an cxisting liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and labilittes on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or
interest.

The tollowing table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised classification Accounting treatment
classification
Amortised cost FYTPL Fair wvalue is measured at reclassification date.
Ii Difference between previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognised in profit ot loss.
IVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new
,f gross carrying amount.
Adhortised cost FVTOCI Fait  value is measured at reclassification date.
i Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
a value is recognised in OCIL No change in EIR due to
n reclassification.
Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new

NEL'OC
1
a

1

amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in QOCI 15 adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always
been measured at amortised cost.

F\iTPI, FVT1OCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
_ cartying amount. No other adjustment is required.

FVTOCT FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Z Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is

1

Offsetting of financial instruments

reclassified from equity to profit or loss the
reclassification date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

o Gac



AVA INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN NO: 1J29304D1L2019PTC358300

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(AW amonitts in INR miéllions, nidess othermise siafed)

n

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
)

(vi)

(vin)

Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Furniture Plant and Office Computers | Vehicles Total {A)
and Fixtures | Machinery | Equipments

Gross cartying amount

Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.38 37.85 2.4 0.94 5.59 46.89

Addisons 0.07 (.40 0.09 0.55

Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.44 37.85 2.53 1.03 5.59 47.44

Additions 228 0.10 0.18 0.27 11 2.93

Dasposals /adjustments .03 0.03

Balance as at 31 March 2025 2.72 37.94 2.72 1.27 5.70 50.35

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 31 Macch 2023 0.17 23.20 1.32 6.50 1.96 27.15

Charge for the year (007 511 0.52 0.33 1.14 7.17

Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.24 28.32 1.84 0.82 3.10 34.32

Charge for the vear (143 472 0.47 .34 .91 6.87

Balance as at 31 March 2025 0.67 33.03 2.3 1.16 4.01 41.19

Net block carrying amount

Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.20 9.53 0.70 0.20 2.50 13.13

Bulance as at 31 March 2025 2.05 4.7 0.41 0.10 L70 9.17

Notes:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost comprising of purchase price and any inital directly agiributable cost of bringing the asser

L its working condition for irs intended use, less aceumulated depreciation {other than freehold land) and impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment as prescribed in Schedule [T of the Compantes ct, 2013,

The esumared vseful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any change in cstimate

accounted for on a prospective basis,

The csumated useful lives are as mentoned below:

Type of asset

Useful lives*®

(yrs)

Furnirure and Fixtures 10
Plant and Machmery

Clpiord for pirajects 3

Casecrar for owir qise 10

Lry 5

Others 10
Office lquipments 5
Molle Accessories 3
Computets 3

* Uhe Company lefieres that the techricatly evaluated wsefisl Bres, different from Schedle 1T of the Companses Alct, 201 3, hest represent the period orer which

tiese assels dre expected o e wsed.

Property, plant and equipment with {inite hfe are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that thewr carrying amounts

muy not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.c. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in

use) 15 determined on an individual asser basis unless the asscr does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from

other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unir (CGLY) to which the asset belongs.

“Tisestitared to be less than its careying amount, the cartying smount of the wsset (or CGL)

C&i INgaYs recognised in the statement of profit and loss.




AVA INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMUTED

CIN NO: (2030413120191 T C358300

Notes 1o the stundalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
W gty i AR miflimin, sl wthernae sbated)

L]

lovestment Property

Particulars Investment Property Investment Total

Land Building Property under

construction

Gross Careving Amount
As at March 31, 2024 59.33 - - 59.33
Acquisttion dunng the Year 15.13 - - 15.13
As at March 31, 2025 74,45 = = 74.45
Accumuiated Depreciation
As at March 31, 2024 1 1 L -
Charge tor the Year - - - =
Daposals - . - -
As at March 31, 2025 - - - -
Net Carrging Amount
As ot March 31, 2024 59.33 - - 59.33
As at March 31, 2025 74.45 - - 74.45
Lt ctzant Prgperty comidst of 2 Plots of Taad fe. Plat No, 53000~ 537 sitwated at Indiried Model Temszohipy, Kisard backa, | ana
Investments
Particulars Non-Current Current

As at As at As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Investment in Associates

lruliv Paid Equity Shares (Ungaored)”

TOTAL

FSON L uatly Pad Up Eigaisty Sharecaf W2 Prudlicis dure been parcdoned for 509 stake i tie cotpuaRy.

‘I'rade teceivables

.50

11.50)

0.50

0.50

Particulurs

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Tracde reeen ables considered good - Unsceared 12064 4834
Towal 120.64 48,34
Reber note 37 tor disclosure of far value m respeet of francial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expucted credit losses respectivelv.
Trade recon ables agoing schedule i ax follows:
Particulars As at 31 March 2025
Qustanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less thau 6 | 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
months years

(1 Undisputed Trade recenvables - considered good 58,37 43.2% 10,24 7.2 0.93 120.64

‘Total 58.37 43.28 10.24 7.82 0.93 120.64
I rade reven ables ageing schedule 15 as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March 2024
QOuistanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 | 6 months - 1 year 1-2Z yeurs 2-3 years More than 3
months years

L ndisputed “Crace recen ables — considered gond 2341 15.61 385 1.33 4.14 48.34

‘I'otal 23.41 15.61 3.85 1,33 4.14 $8.34
Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at
o 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash on hand 0.0 802
Balances wirh hanks in current accounis 3.2 2419
Taotal 3.92 5.11

Reter mote 37 for disclosure of fair value in respeet of fimancial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expecred eredit losses respectively.




AVA INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN

NC: U29304D1.2019P71C358300

Notes 1o the standadone financial seatements for the year ended Murch 31, 2025

0]

11

12

it i AN sl unlen aflemne vatedt

Loany
Particulars Non-Current Current
As at As at As at As ai
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Levmns 1o Related Parts 542 12350 . 5k.12
Lavans 1o Cithers 308 =
‘Total 8.51 - 123.50 58.12

“ Loany ace provided 1o related parties lor use in Busmess & Profession

Refer note 37 for disclosure of fae value m respeet of financial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected eredit Tosses respeetively.

Other Financial Assets

Particulars Non«current Current

As at As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Seeuity Deposiis 048 1,48 149 1.63

T'otal 0.48 i.88 1.49 1.63

Reto noe 37 for diselosure of faw values m eespeet of financial assets measured ar amornsed cost and assessment of expected credit losses,

Other assets

Prarticulars Non-current Current

As at As at As at Asg at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balnees with starnony authosines 12,93 1249
Propand rases =k
Preepand capenses - .18 0.17
Wdvance o omplovers 0.18 IR N
Whoanee o supplicrs 7.23 140.5%
Other (.00
T'otal - - 20.54 155,97
Inventories

Lventones consests ol Raw matenats, sub assemblies and compaonents, by Work m progress, €) Stores and spare parts and d) Finished goods, Inventories ace carcied at lower of cost
i prog pare p 3

Toventonics consist of the following:

. melloit)

Purticulurs As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

o matenal, Pashed poods and work in progress 110.49 6297

[ Lotal 110.49 62.97

Deferred Tax Assct (neg

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deferred tax assets on acconnt of

P ditfecenee an account of depreetanon and umortsanon on propeety, plant and cquipment and ntinglle assets 343 AT
Deferred Tax Asset {net) 3.43 3.07
Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2025 :-
Particulars Opening deferred Income tax Income tax Closing deferred
tax asset / {expense) / (expense) / tax assect
(liabilisy) credit recognized credit { (Hability)
in profitorloss  recognized in
other
comprchensive
income

Beferred tax assets on account of :

Duning diftvrence onaccount of depreciaton and amortsation o propercey, plant and equipment and 258 4,30 2Oy
Fnplover henefis 0.4 il (03 030

Deferred tan asscts (net) 3.07 0.41 (0.05) 3.43




AVAINTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN NO: 1293031120191 1358300

Notes w the stundalone finaneial statemems for the year ended March 31, 2025

ettt { ANR sl sowless athern e ated)

14.2 Movementin deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2024 :-

Particulars Opening deferred  Income tax Incame tax Closing deferred
tax asset / (cxpense) [/ (expense) / fax asset
(liability) credit recognized credit f{liability)
i profit orloss  recogaized in
other
comprehensive
= income
Deferred tax assets on account of @
Funmg ditlerenee on account ol depreciaton and amaortisation on properiy, plant and equipment and ) (L35 .58
Fmploves enetiy 0.23 0.32 (#.05) 149
Delerred tax assets (net) 2.45 0.67 (0.05) 3.07
15 Assets held for sale
Particolars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Buildings 47.73 4773
Total 47.73 §7.73

N Carrent Loty i st wrdepend crnsps copiprasing of - Laehy &~ Taabilitier are olecafied av "held e st 5 honr alf e pollasing cniteria, are el
et Joes Becir mende fo el (i) Tie avels are carailbahly for smezidiate vale 2 i3 present oondition and (ie) the aoets are beige aotirely mardeted

Sehejinontl sl san-serent avefs aid dipa! saps dre cLoofied av held for sale” apd are meanird at baver of it

crryane U udie cond (00) Voer Ve dovs cond to sl

Naon-Current Assets ficld for sale are not depreciated or amortised

(1 putsie o o eetcetronally i el )




AVA INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED

CLN NO: (29503002019 T (358300

Notes 10 the staadalone financial sutements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
£ mannts g ENI pedimes, sindin offom b £ ifoed)

Pagticulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number Amouni Number Amgunt
1 Equity share capical
Anrchewised
o <lraces of Be 16 cach H)SHH) i 100,08 (a1l
Tatal 10,600 .10 10,000 010
Issued, subscribed and [ully paid up shares
Tusts shares of Re 16 cacly, tulh pad JUREL] 0,141 10,000 ih Y
Taral 10,60 0.10 10,000 0.10
1ol Becorciliation of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and a1 che end of the reporting year:
Liquity shaees of Rs. 10 cach Numlber Amouni Number Amount
Sharcs aneenindnng an the hepmuing of the year L) 1A TH AU} AL
shares soaed dnome e vear
Sl Bin Dok 2300 13
Shares austanding an the end of the year 7,500 08 10,000 0.10

16.2 “Lerms/nghis atsached to shares of the Company:

Ll Compone iy

sl e clase ol slares eelored 1oas G shaees havng a paevalue of B 10 cach holder of cquin shares 1 enntled o one vote per share b the event of guanlanon of the company, the holdee ol

comin shases sl he onatlod o ececve amy of e remaming assets o the company, atree chatabutum af all prefecentut amounrs, The dienbuton will be w propaenon o the number ot equety shaees beld by the

sharcholdees

16.3 Eretail of sharcholders helding mere than 544 shares in the Company

Naraes ol the Sharcholder
Isiovarmsew e Prevace Lamiredd
Sutndh Bansal

Vkalnt Yhetal

1.4 Shares held by LHolding Company, its Subsidiaries and Assaciates

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Partculars

As o As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2624
(millions) {millions}

Liguity shares

sSOCLAle company

Whogqmes ~hares Marels 3000010 L0 are held s

Fraewatvesw Lo Posete Domeed, 20000 Sliies beoe value 16, b back ot
BV ETAN )

a2

16,5 Detals ol shares held by promoters

Number "4 of holding Number "o af halding
(M E 19 AT Wr
i 53 ERELT] 1
kALY 2 BT uy

Name of Feomoter

No. of shares at
01 April 2024

Change during the
year

No. of shares at 31
March 2025

?u of Total Shares

“u change during

(Ensovants idia Provare Lagted - 250 1450} 1033
Srurwdh Baneal 141 AAHHI 53333
YhaTut A 24 2HHI 2007 o

Name of Peomoter

No. of shares at 01

Change during the

No. of shares at 31

%o of Toual Shares

“u change during

April 2023 year March 2024 the year
Ermevaiview Tndia Provate Lamated L0 ATl HHE 0 (Pa
urudh Bansal ST H 1000y 0000, [
Vhehat Matzal kAEE1] 2ARKY 2K w L}

16.6 0 Lhe Company has parssuecam Bonns shaees [ Towever 20000 sTaes have heen boushit back as a2 L00.2024 by the company durmg; (he year




AVA TNTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN NO; U29304D L2019 1'C358300
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 34, 2025

{ Lo

aeatte it ENR amillions, wenlevs otheny i sfated)

17 Other Hquity

PParticulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Reromed cammngs H07.82 3042
Total 407.82 398.82
Nature and purpose of other reserves
Retained curnings
Retanud cumngs comprizes of curgent yoar and prior perods undistributed carming or losses after tax.
I8 Borrowings
Purticulars Non-Current Current
Asat As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Feom Banks (Securedy Tl 17.65
From Banks iScenred) Corzent Manirny of Loy Ferm Borranemgs 1.35
- - 7140 19.00
Cash credit fucilities amounting Rs. 49.5 millions obtained from 1CHCT Bank i primary sccured by frst pari passu change by way of hypotheeation on the entiee gurrent assets of the Company,
collarerally exclusive charge on immovable fixed assets namely Plot No 517, Sector 38, TSI, Phase V, Food Park, Rai, Sonepat, aryana 131028 and personal guarantee of directors of the
Company. The Peiliy carnics wn intecest which is computed @ Repo+ (spread e 37).
19 Trade pavables
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total outstanding dues o micro enterprises and smabl enterprises (refer note 19,1 below) 13.63
Total outstanding dues to eraditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1163 el
Total 24.27 8.54
191 Trade payables ageing schedule is as foltows:
Partigulars As at 31 March 2025
Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment Tural
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears
4 Uindriparcd NSNS 12.74 (L85 [LGHY 13.63
1) Uindespuiteet Other 704 0,02 .01 16K [ LR
tii) Dsputed ducs MSME -
1) Dsputed dues others - - -
Toral 20.71 0.86 L.01 1.68 24.27
Particulars As at 31 March 2024
Outsranding lor following periods from duce date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i} Unidisputed- MSMIE - i, -
a0 Undeputed: Others 6.37 .48 .68 8.34
) Dasputed dues- MSMIE - - - -
() Lhspoted dues others - - -
Total 6.57 0,48 1.68 - 8.54 |
19.2 Disclosures as required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Mcdium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 due 10 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Particulurs As As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
The principal wmoune and the interest due thereon emaining unpaid w any supplier as at e end of cach accountiag year
Pracipal amonni due 13.63
Iuceest amount Jue
The weine abnserest pand by the buver mreems of seetom 16, Aoy wirh the amounts af the paymont made
1o the supplicr hovond the appomted din durpg each aceountang year
The amunt of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been pad but
boyond the apponted day during the yean) bue without adding the interest specified under the Aey
The anzount of micrcst acerued and remanmg unpad a0 the end of cach accountng vear
The amount of further interest remaming doe and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when
the mterest dues as above are actually paid o the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowanee as a
deducuble espenditure under seetion 23
9.3 Relornow 37 for dvclesure of fur valaes morespeet of Gmancial habilitics measured at amortised cost and analysis of their matonty peofiles,
—




AVA INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN NO: U29304D L2019 TC358300

Notes w the standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

20

21

22

22(m

o ENR mefiaims, pifooy offumi hve st d)

Cher financial Habilities

Particulars

MNon-Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2025 51 arch 2024 31 March 2025 31 barch 2024
Fmplovecs relaed pavables o 424 Lan
Ohher Fapenses Pavable 1.28 RE]
Total - - 4.52 4.69
Refer note 37 for disclosure of fair values in respeet of financial habilities measured at amortised cost and analysis of their maturity profiles.
Current tax liabilities/ (assets) (nef)
Particulars As at As at
31 Muarch 2025 31 March 2024
Ineome tn Trabihiy B46 Lo
Losas Ineome s pad m e LX) 1.0
"I'otal (0.22) 2.96
Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue recenod m adv ance 1267 2147
Statulors hhiliics .71 .21
Total 13.38 21,08
Provisions Mon - Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As ai

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

31 March 2025

31 March 2025

Prowsion ol conplosce benefits
Chvatuity
Leave encashment

Toutal

2.68 1.3% anl
0,8y .38 0412 (391
3.57 1.96 0.03 0.01
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CIN NO: 129304112019 T'C358300

Notes o the standalone financial staterments for the year ended March 31, 2025

(A vimonnts fe INR wiflions, wundess othermise itated)

23 Revenue from operation

Particulats Year ended Year ended
i 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
sales of Goods 363.82 203.04
Sales of Services 3.96 (.20
Crther Operating Revenues 0.12 0.03
I'otal 367.90 203.26
24 Other income
Year ended Year cnded

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

lrierest ill(‘()l'ﬂ(.‘ on

[
o

Loans (Unsecured 13.97 1151
Rental mecome - 1.18
AMiscellaneous mcome 2.37 0.m
Totai 16.35 15.69
Cost of material consumed
Paricul Year ended Year ended
RIS
TR 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Purchases 231.89 101.32
Add: Drrect Pxpenses 112.74 73.68
344.63 175.00
26 Changres in inventories of stock in trade
P Year ended Year ended
F - ars
e 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
[nventores at the beginning of the year 62.97 28
fnventories at the end of the year 110.49 62.97
Change in inventorics (47.52) (35.07)
27 Employec benefits expense
Partculars Year ended Year ended
: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Suluries 36.26 320
Countribution 1o provident and other funds .53 .57
Stk weltare UNICRECS 0.85 (.52
Total 37.65 33.00
28 Finance Costs
Purticulars Year ended Year ended
e 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Tuterest an loan +4.98 255
Toral 4,98 2,57




AVA INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN NO: U29304D1.20191'C358300

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(- VW amorents i INR miillions, nuless otherwise stuted)

29 Depreciation and amortisation cxpense

Particulurs Yecar ended Year ended
SUCUSE 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deprectation on property, plant and equipment 6.87 7.17
Total 6.87 7.17
30 Other expenses
Year cnded Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

wnnual Mantainence Charges

tudit Fees (reter note 30,1)

Bad [yebts

Baek Charges

Buarcode Fxpense

Busmess Promotion Lxpenses
Collection Charges

Commission or Brokerayre Fxpenses
Communication lixpense
Convevange and Travelling Bxpenses
CSR Tixpense

Design [xpenses

Ditterence m Forex famount settled within same vear)
Insuranee

lterest on meome tax

Interest on [N

Fegal & Protessional Hxpenses
OMtice Lapenses

Other Bxpenses

(nher Fees

Penalry on G|

Prmuong & Statonery

Rebate & Discount

Repair & Maintainance [xp

Roc Fees

Security Bxpenses

Shufting Expenses

Shor & Hxcess

Technology Clurges

Toug and Travel Fxpenses

Vchiele Runnmg & Mamtenance Fxpenses
Website and Sotiware Lixpenses
Total

30.1 Payment to auditors

129
0.10 {.20
0.01 (.01
0.43 0.27
0.02 0.07
8.90 2.2
0.21 0.52
180 .08
0.15 .19
0.09 0.19
2.80 3.10
0.01 0.20
(.02
12 .23
047
[ERR)
222 1.25
0.50 0.81
0,57 (.25
0.02
0.01
0.25 0.25
0.13
1.39 172
0.03 .01
0.19 0.55
0.03 .29
.01 0.02
0.08 0.79
0.60 0.28
042 0.28
0.51 .57
24.47 16.88

Particulars

Year ended

31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

s statutory auditor

Tax audir tee

0.08 (.15
0.03 (.05
0.10 0.20
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31

32

Income-tax

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
The income tax expense consists of the following:
Current tax 2,26 L6
Deferred tax 0.41 0.67
‘L'otal tax cxpense 2.67 5.12

Reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the latest statutory enacted tax rate in India to income-tax expense reported
is ag follows:

Profit before tax

Particulars Year ended Year cnded
) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
13.17 19.31
\pplicable tax rate for the Company” 17.16% 17.16%
lixpected income-tax expense (A) 226 3.31

Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax cxpense
Expenses debited into P&LL but deduction not allowed: .41 2.68
Expenses not debited 1ato P&IL but deductdon allowed: = (1.88

Brought Forward Losses Adjusted -

otlwers
Total adjustments (B) 0.41 1.80
Total ax expense (A+B) 2.67 5.12

O30 September 2019, the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 Cthe Ordinance’) was passed introducing section 115BAB of the Tncome
tax Aet, 1961 which allowed domestic manulacturing companies to opt for an alternative tax regime from financial year 2019-20 onwards. As per the
regime, companies can opl 1o pay reduced income-tax i@ 15% (plus surcharge and cess) subject to foregoing of certain exempiions. The Company has
decided o opr for the aforementioned regime and has provided for its current taxes ar lower rates and has made the requisite adjustments in irs deferred

raxes,
Earnings/(loss) per share Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit for the year for basic/diluted carning per share (A) 1,13,13,983 1,55,10,000
Werghted average number of equity shares ovtstanding durtng the vear for calculation of basic 8,658 10,000
carntng per share (B
Werghted average oumber of equity shares outstanding during the year for caleulation of diluted 8,658 10,000
carning per share (€
Nominal Value of Equity Sharcs () 10 10
Basic carning per share (A/B) 1,307 1,551
Diluted caming per share {A/C) 1,307 1,551

(This space has lecn intentignally left blant:)
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33 Related party disclosurcs

33.1 List of Related Parties where Control cxists and Relationships:

Name of party Relationship
Alr. Aoirudh Bansal Director
Mre, Aleshur Mietal Director

AWN Products Pt Led

Aachit Traders

Fonnovativies Ingha Lamited

Innovatiview Rental Solutions Private Lamited
innovatview lechnologies Private Limired
AV Dnddia Private Limited

WA Global Technology Private Linuted
Bhaapy a Panel Products Py Lad

Satrupa Global Services Pt L
Convergent Mlance

WU Rusiems

33.2 I'ransactions with refated parties during the year

Associate Company

Akeshie Mittal Director (Partners of firm)
lintty wader the control/sigmificant influeace
Entity under she control/symificant mfluence
latity under the control /significant influence
Iintity under the control /significant influence
Eutity under the conerol /significant influence
lintity under the control /sygnificant mfluence
Lintity under the control /significant influenee
[Eneiey under the Cmm'()L'.-cl_lrmﬁc;im influence

Fanaity under the control/ sipmtticant milucnce

Year ended Year ended
Key management personnel compensation 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Short term employee benefits 4.54 3.6
‘Total compensation 4.54 3.60
Transactions with related parties during the year
Name of party Nature of transaction Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Tiovatview [ndi Limited Sale 3.62 37149
Innovanview: India Limited Buy Back of Investment 248
Tnnovatview [ndia Limsred lan Given T2
Innovanview India Limited Loan Retuen Bacek 173,25
Tsoviview India Lamed Iaterese Reecived on Loan 14.11
Innovarecies Tudia Famged Sale of Property, Plant & liquipment .13
Innovatview Rental Soluttons Private Tamired Sale .19
Tnnovarn ww Renral Solunons Pesvate Limited Purchasc 000
Innovat s Technologies Prvate Linuted sale ul
[nnovauview Teehnologies Privare Lamated l.oan Given 18.20
Inovatnew Technologies Private Limited Loan Recarved Back 20.06
Innovatview Techmolugies Pravate Limited faterest Recerved on Loan 1.86 (1.21
Melue Traders Sale 9.62
Anchie Traders Purchase 184 (.23
Nl ens Fxpenses - reghr & Carrage 01.01
AV India Privare Timited Lxpenses - Adverticsment 0l
WA Tadia Provare Lamaeed Sale .34
(W Glabal Technolopy Drivate Jamsted Sale 1.59
VA Products Provate Limired Purchase 1.26 (3,98
WA Praducts Private Pimited Sale 1.00) 1,143
AW Products Prvate Tamited Fxpenses - Rent .23
WO roducts Private Linnted Loan Grven (190 1.10
WA Products Prvare Limired Interest Recerved on Loan 17 (.03
Bhaygna Panel Products Pee 1ed lL.oan Reeerved 0.01
Blaagya Panel Products Pt Lad lLoan Repayment 0.
sateupa Global Services Pee Lid L.oan Given 110.03 38.47
Sateupa CGlobal Services vt Ead l.oan Reren Back 32.64
satrupa Global Serviees Py iad Intetest Received on Loan 11.92 015
Mshie Mateal Tanpwest A ¢ Remmbursement of expense 1.38 .32
Vbt Ml Advance Giren .05 .19
Varwdh Bansal Sale 0,00
Aredh Bansal == Remmbussement of expense 0.2
Converpent Alhance Ps D’_L'q'ﬁ A Rale .20 0.38
Converpenr AMijance Ja-z ?;ﬁ\l&'s return (.37
Comeergent Alhance l‘ ! { { :_“ ‘. @;‘-clmsu 1168
r /
o
o) 5
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33.3 [Outstanding balances
Name of party Nature As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

Innovaesview India Fimced T'rade Pavable 0.14 (.05
Inaovatn sew Technologes Prvate Limiated Loan Gren 18.39
Innovaitview Rental solutions Privare Famated Trade Pavable .00

Anchit Fraders T'rade Recetvable 2.90 8.41
SN Tndia Prvare Limited Trade Payable [SR3TH
AV A Svatemes I'rade Recervable [RLEY
AW Products Private Limited Trade Payable .21

WA Products Private Timated Toan Ciiven 2.20 113
savapa Global Services vt Lad Loan (hven 126.73 3860
Antradh Bansal Salary Payable 0.14 .13
Vkahat Alieal Salary Pavable 011 0,10
Convergent Abance T'rade Receivable 1,89

34

Information wnder section 186(4) of the Companics Act, 2013

There wre no mvestments or loan piven or gnarantee provided of seeurity given by the Company other than the investimenes stated uader note 7 and note 10 in these

standalone financal starements, which have been made predommantly for the purpose of business.

(Thiv space hav beeit intentionally fojt blank)
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35 Lmployee henefit obligations
A Defined contribution plans
Year ended Year ended
The amount recognised as expense towards contribution to defined contribution plans for the year is as below: g Lo 202 Sl el 2
Company's contribution to Provident Fund (.33 052
Company's contribution to Fmployees” State nsurance Scheme 0.22 0
Laber wellare fund .44
Total 2,75 0.57
B Defined benefit plan — Gratuity
(i} Amount recognized in balance sheet:
) As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of the obligation 2.64 1.5
Net lizbility recognised in the balance sheet 2.69 1.58
Bifurcation of present value of obligation - current and non current
: As at As at
Particulars
31 Macch 2025 31 March 2024
Nan cuerent 01 0o
Current 2.64 1.58
2.69 1.58
(i) DMovement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet
Particulars Agat o
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the vear 1.58 (.75
{urrent servicy cost 1.30 (195
Tmeresi cost 011 (L0
Benchins pad {01
Mot Joss /iy o) (11.29) {1.21;
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 2.69 1.58
(i)} lxpense recognised in the statement of profit and loss consists of:
Particulars Asa st
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Clurrent service cost 1.30 YR
Tnterest cost 0.11 116
Net impact on profit before tax 1.41 1.04
etwarial Toss/ (gain) recognised during the vear (1.29) f11.21;
Amount recognised in total comprehensive income 1.12 0.84
(iv) Breakup of actvarial (gain)/loss recognised in the other comprehensive income:
. As at As at
Paeticulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Aetaarnl fram)/lass Trom change in hnanciad assumption
Lol ‘mam) /oss From experience adistment 0,29) 0.21
Setnaral fgain)/loss (rom change i demeographic assumption
Total actuarial (gain) /loss (0.29) - 0.21
(v} Uxpected contribution for next annual reporting period
Particulars lat st
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Bervice cost [ 3624 1.38
Mot Interest cost 019 .11
Expected expense for next annual reporting period 2.05 1.49
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{vi) Significant Actuarial assumptions

g As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Leseription
Ioseount rate (In ¥ 609" 725"
Putare Salary Inevcase (In ") 10HI° 1o s
Moathdrawal rare
Up o 30 Years g 54
From 31 1o 44 vears B9, 5%,
Above 44 years 5" 5%
Retisernent e Y ears; 54 Eh
Mowtality vare melusive of provision for disalnhiy 100", el TALM 100 ol TATM
2015.14) ©oo12-14)

Weightod average duration {n years)
Mweragre ulure service (In years)

Notes:

(4} The discount rae is generally based upon the market yields availible on Government bonds a1 the accounting Jate relevaat to currency of benefit payments tor a term that
matches the liabilies.

(by The esuimates of tuture salary inereases considered takes into account the nflation, sentoerity, promotion and other relevaat factors,

(vii} Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Particulars o A
351 March 2025 31 March 2024
Impact of change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 200 -
Impact due to nerease of 1.5, (.22)
Impaet due o decrease of (0537« 1125
[mpact of change n sadary inerease
Present value of obliganon at the end of the year 2.69
Tonpract due to inerease of 0.5 % .21
Eenpact dJue o deerease of 1031 {0.23)

Sensviies due to mortality & withdeawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not caleulated, Sensitivities a8 rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate
almercric ol ponatons hetore retirement 8 hie expectiney are not applicable

(viii) The plan exposes the Company w actunrial risks such as interest rate risk and mflation risk.
Interest rate risk
The present vadue o tae defined Benelis labality s caleulated wsing a discount rate determined by reference o market viclds of risk free sceurities.
Inflation risk
\sgnificant praporion of the defined benefit liability s linked o inflation. An merease in the inflation rate will inerease the Company’s liability,

(ix) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars Lo aiat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Year
O 1 Year ol
Lt 2 Year 004
2o 3 Year 008
Yol Year 011
o3 Year 012
516 Year (.11
6 Year o ards 220
Civoss Tonl 2.69 -

C  Ouher long-term benefits:
nactirtal valuation of compensated absenees has heen earried out by an idependent actuary usig the Projected Unit Credit method. The ameant secognised as an expusse
tovards compensated absences (or the period 31 March 2025 amounts 1o TNR 0.59 millions (31 March 20240 INR 0.31 millions). s ar 31 March 2025, provision {or
compensaled absenees amounts to INR 0,91 mullions (31 March 2024: INR 0.39 Million) presented as provision for employee benefits i note 19 - Provisions, Since the
Company docs not have an ancondional aght 1o defer settfernent for any of the leave obliganons, ¢ disclosed the amount as current fiabilitics. TTowever, the Company docs
nat expeet that all leave oblgations will be settled in the next 12 months.
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36
()

(b

()

()

Revenne from contracts with customers
Disagpregation of revenue
The Company bas pecformed 1 disagpregiated analysis of revenues considering the asture, amount, tming and uncertainty of revenues. This inchudes disclosure of revenues by
proariphy and tntng ol cecognition:
Revenue from operations Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue by geography
Witdun India 367.90 203,206
Total 367.90 203,26
Revenue by time
Revenue recognised at paint i ime 163.82 203.04
Ruovenue recognised over tme 408 .23
Total 367,90 203.26
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

fd AS 15 also requires disclosure of ‘reventie recognised in the reporting puriod than was ineluded in the contract Tability balance at the beginaing of the period” and *revenuc
recognised i the reporting prriod from performance obligations satisficd (or parttally satisfied) m previous periods. Same bhas been disclosed as below:

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
cnue reeogtised i the reporting period that was included e rthe conteact Tubiliey = 541
halance ar the begimnng of the period
Assets and liabilities related to contracts with costomers
¥ As at As ax
Description 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract Habilities related to sale of services
Advance (rom costomers 12.67 21.47
Contract asscts related to sale of services
Trade recen alles 120,64 44,34
Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with Contract price
Deseripuion Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract price 367.90 203.26
Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss 367.90 203.260
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37  Financial Instruments

A Financial asscis and liabilitics

The accountmy chassificasion of cach catepory of Gnandal instruments, and theie carrymyg atnounts, are sct out below:

Particulars Naote As at As at
31 Maich 2025 31 March 2024
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
LLann 10 132.(1 38.12
Other financad assets 11 1.97 3.51
Trade recemvables 8 120.64 48.34
Coashoand cash equivalents 9 392 5,11
Total 258.54 115.08
Financial liabilitics measured at amortised cost:
Borrowmygs 18 71,40 19.40)
Oither fnancal Tabiiges 20 4.52 +£.69
Trade payables 19 24.27 854
Taotal 100.19 32.23

B Fatr values hicrarchy

The tarr value of linancial mnstruments as referred to m note 04) above has been classified into three eawgorics depending on the inpuis used in the valuation technique,

The hicarchy gives the highest paority 1o quoted prices in active markets for dentical assets or habilines [Level 1 measurements] and lowess priosiy (o unobservable

wpats JLevel 3 measurements).

The categories used arce as follows:

Leved 1: Quoted prices lor ideniteal mstruments inan active market;

Level 2: Directh fue. as prices) or mdirecthy (e, desived trom prices) observable market mputs, other than Level Tanpuis, and

Level 3: Tnpues which are aot based om observable market data (unabservable mputs), Fatr values are determined 1 whole or in part using a ner asset value or

valwation wodel based on assumprons that are newther supported by prices from obseevable current market transacsions m te same insteument sor are they based on

avalable ket dara,

(s spawe hay been left bilawd, intentionalfy)
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B.1 Financial assets and liabilitics measured at amortised cost

e value of hnanaal assers and lalwlines measured ar amaortised cost

As at 31 March 2025 Level Carrying valuc Fair value Reference
Financial assets
Oiher linancial assets 3 1.97 1.97 T RO L s
I'rade receivables 3 120.64 120,64 reler note "2’
Cash and cash equivalenis 3 3.92 3.92 refer note 'a'
Finuncial lixbilities
Borrowings <) 71,40 T1.40 refer note
Oither financial irabilites 3 452 4.52 refer note '
I'rade payables 3 24.27 24.27 refer note '’
[As at 31 March 2024 Level Carrying value Fair value Reference
LTinancial asscts
Secursty Depostis 3 reler note e
Chilier tinmenl assers 3 3.51 3.51 reler note W
I rade recervables 3 48.34 48.34 refer note "2t
Cash amd ensh cquivalents 3 5.11 511 refer note "2’
Financial liabilities
Borrowmgs 3 19.00 19.00 refer note '
Onher Goancal Tabdaes 3 1.09 1.69 refer note "2’
Prade panables 3 454 8.54 refer note "'

() The corving amouat leans, teade cecevables, other bank balances, cash and cash equivalents, tade payables and other financial abilities which are short term in

natury are constdered 16 same as their far values,

(b) M the dong term borrowiny, facilives avalded by the Company from unrelated parties are fixed rate Facilices which are not subgect to changes m underlying interest rae

wichees, Cnrenn borrowang rate 15 sidar 1o the lixed rate of interest on these factlities, henee far value is not significanty different from the carrvmy value.,

() T L values of securnty depotsts are caleulated based on cash fows discounted wsg a cusrent lending rate.

(dy Al bancad assets and el Tlabshties ase classibied as level 3 Gur values i the fur valoe heerarchy due to the use of mmobservable mputs, mcluding own credu esh

(Fhn apave Jony beva feft Dl siventinnally)
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C

C1

(2}

Financial Risk Management

Risk Management

The Company’s actvides expose it o marke sk, lignidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of ditectors has overall responsibificy for the establishmenm and
oversight of the Company's risk management framework. This note explaias the sources of risk which the entity is exposcd to and how the eatity manages the nsk and the
relied mpact i the Ginaneiad sttements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Crodit ri Cash and cash cquivalents, trade|Ageing analysis, Credit ratings Bank deposits, diversification of asset base, credit limits
receivables, and  other  financial

assets measured al amsortised cost.

Ligudity ris Boreowings and other habilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Avatlability of committed eredit lines and borrowing
factiies

Market msk - mierest rate Long-term borrowings at variablelSensitivity analysis Negotiation of terms that refleet the market factors

rates

Market rsk - Torcign

wxchangn

Market risk - sccuriy price lavetsments o muotual londs Sensitvity analysts Diversification of portfolio, with focus on stralgne
investments

Lhe Company’s wisl management s carded out under policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors provides written principles [or overall risk
mangement, as well as pohicies covenng specilie arcas, such as forcign exchange nsk, interest rate sk, eredit sk and investment of exeess bguidiny,

Credit risk

Credin eisk s the aisk thar o counterparty fails 1o discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure 1o credit misk 1s influenced manly by investments in
redeemable preference shares, cash and cash vquivadents, trade recetvables, derivative financal mstruments and other financial assets measured at amortised cost, 1
Company contmuously monitors defades of customers and other counterpartics and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls,

Credit risk management
e Company assesses and manages credic sisk based on internal credit rating system, Internal credit rating 1 pesformed for cach class of (inancial instruments with different
charecteristies. The Company assigns the follovang eredit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specilic to the class ot

Hnancil assets,

(1 b ereditr

() Moderate eredit risk

k

{1y Thgh credit o

Bused on bustness enviconment in which the Company operates, a defavnlt on a financial asset is considered when the eounter party fails to make pavments withm the agreed
fine pertoc as per contract. Loss rates eeflecting defaults are based on actual eredit loss experienee and considering differences between current and historical ceonomic

conditions,

Vascts e wrntten ol when there bs no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring banksuptey or a litigation decided against the Company. The Company
contmues o ungage with parties whose balanees are written off and attempts to entoree repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in statemeat of profie and loss.

‘The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Basis of categorisation Assct class exposed to credit risk Provision for expected credit loss
Low credit risk Loans, Cash and cash equivalents, financta 12 month expeeted credit loss

measured at amortised cost
Maoderate eredit risk Trade receivabes Trade receivables - Life time expected credit loss

Tigh credin risk T'racle recervable Trade receivables - Like time expeeted credit loss or specific provision wlichever
is higher

Financial assets that exposc the entity 10 credit risk -

Particulars At at At at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Low credit risk
Lovans 13201 6017
Trade recovaliles 12064 A8 34
Cash and eash cquivalents 392 a1l
Onher manetal asscts 197 146

Total 258.54 115.08
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Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash cguivalents and bank deposits is managed by only aceepting highly rated bunks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different
banks across the country.

Derivative financial instruments

Licrtvattve iinancial instruments are considered to have low eredit risk since the contracts are with reputable financial institations.

T'rade receivables

Teade recavables are generally unseeured and non-meerest bearing, There is no significant concentration of credit sk, ‘The Company’s eradit risk management policy in
relion to trade reccivables mvolves periodically assessing the financial reliability of customers, raking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors,
Phe anlizon of credit bmit is regularly mosdzored. The Company™s credit sk is mainly confined to the risk of customers defaulting against credit sales made. Owistanding
trade receivables are regularly monttored by eredit mongtoring Company. In respeet of trade recdvables, the Company recognises a provision for lifetime expected credit

lorssies after evitluating the mdividual probabtlities of default of its customers which arc duly based on the inputs received from the marketing teams of the Company.

Onther financial assets measured at amortised cost

Loans amd other fimanctal assets are considercd 1o have low crodit risk since there is a low gisk of defalt by the counterparties owing to their strong capacity to mect
ceneractal cash ow obligations in the ner weem. Credit rish related to these other finaacial assets is managed by moniloring the recoverability of such amounts
contmuously, while at the same time internal control system in place ensure the amounts are wichin defined limits.

Expected credit losses for financial asscts

Financial asscts (other than trade receivables)

Compuny provides for expeeted eredit Iosses on loans other than trade recesvables by assessing individual financial instruments for expeetation of any credit losses.

Iror cash & cash equivalents, sthee bank balances and derivative financial instzuments- Since the Company deals with only high-rated banks and financial nstrisuons, credi
risk in respect of cash and cash cquivalents, derivative fnancial mstruments, other bank balances and bank deposits s evaluated as very low,

[rar Leans eomprising scaanty deposits pad - Credin esk s considered ow because the Company 1s in possession of the underlving asset,

Pror other finaneial assets - Credit nsk s evaluated based on Cempany knowledge of the credit worthiness of those partics and loss allowance 1s measurcd, For sueh
linancial assets, the Campany policy is 1o provide for 12 month expected eredit fosses upon initial recognition and provide for lifetime expected eredit losses upon significant
ncrease meredit risk.

|7\s at 31 March 2025 Gross carrying Expected Expected credit Carrying amount net of
amount probability of losses loss allowance
default
Loans 132.01 - 132.01
Cash and cash cquivalents a2 - - 3.92
Orther finangial assets 1.97 - - 197
As at 31 March 2024 Gross carrying Expected Expected credit Carrying amount net of
amount probability of losscs foss allowance
default
Loans o117 017
Cash aad cash equivalents 5.11 - 5.11
thhor Mnanenl assels L6 L46
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1%

(i) Expected credit loss for trade reccivables under simplified approach

o
[\

(a)

(h}

-

{1

(i)

v ENR wpillimite, sl ot i Lated)

Va3 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 | the Compaay considered she individual probabilitics of default of its financial assets (other than trade reecivables) and determined

that e geapeet o counterpartics with low ercdit risk, o defaull events are considered to be possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. In respeet o trade

recanvables, the Compamy measures the loss allowanee at an armount vqual to lifetime expected eredit loss

s ustng a simplhificd approach.

As at 31 March 2025

Gross carrying

% of expected credit

Allowance for expected

Carrying amount net of

amount losses credit losses loss allowance
Yok not vt die - -
Between one o sixomonth overdue 58.37 23.41
Betsveen siv menth 1o one year overdu 43,28 15.61
Crvoater thast o year overdug 18.99 9.52
T'istal 120.64 - 48.34
s at 31 March 2024 Gross carrying % of expected credit| Allowance for expected | Carrying amount net of

amount fosses credit losses loss aliowance
Betwecn one tosis month oy erdue 234 - 3 23.41
Burween sy menth to one year overdue 15.61 B - 15.61
Crecaier than one year overdug 9.32 - 9.32
ol 48.34 . 48.34

Liquidity risk

Lasquscdaty sisk is the eisk that the Company will encounter difficuly m meeting the obliganons assoctated with its (inancial fiabilitics that are setled by deliverdng cash or

another Banel asset. The Company approach 1o managing fiquidity is w ensure as far as possible, that it will have sulficient lquidity to mect its abdines when they ar

due.

Mamenwent monttors ralling, lorecasts of the Compuny lguidity postiion and cash amd cash equivalents o the hasis of expeeted cash Gows, The Company Gikes fnte

accennt the by of the morket i which the entity operates,

Maturities of finuncial liabilitics

Phe tables Bcdos anlyse the Company's (naneal labilites mnto relovant mauturity groupings based on thedr contractual matorities

Phe amounnis disclosed o the wble are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, Balances due within 12 months vqual thetr carrying balances as the tmpact of discounting ts
nat stemtticant.

31 March 2025 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Non-dcrivatives

Borrowings 71.40 - - - 71.40
s labidny - - - - -
Trade payables 24.27 0.86 1.01 1.68 27.83
Onher fittmenl abilites 4.60 - - - 4.60
Total 160,27 0.86 1.01 1.68 103.83
31 March 2024 Less than 1year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 ycars Total
Non-derivatives

Borrow s 135 - - - 1.35
Feade payvables 5.15 0.48 1.68 - 831
Other financtal habihues 4.60 - - - 4.60
Total 12.09 0.48 1.68 - 14.26
Interest rae risk

Financial liabilities

The Company’s policy is to minimise inteeest rate cash flow vsk exposures on external Inanetsg. A3 Mareh 2025, the Company is not exposed to changes W nterest rates
1l bank Borrowings earny fived mierest raes. Phe Company's mvestments in fixed depostts carry fixed nterest rates.

linancial assets

Fow Compan s loan to a2 employees, other partics and deposits with banks are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate instraments. They are, therefore, not subect 16

teaest e msh s de fned e ind AR 107, since neither the garrvang amount nor the futuee cash Tows will Muetuate becawse of 4 chinge i markel mterest rates,
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38 Capital Management

39

d.

Bl

Lhe Companys capital smanagement objectives are to ensure the long term sustenanee of the Company as 1 going concumn w hile mamtainmy haalthy capsial eetios, steony:

sornal eredit sring and o maxinise the ceturm for stakeholders

Fhie Company manages 1ts capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in ceonomic conditions and the risk chazacteristios of the underlying assets. In

ordor te maintain or adjust the eapital strucware, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, return capital to sharcholders, issue new shares or
sl ssets o reduee debr The Company also judiciously manages its capital allocations lowards difterent vadous purpnses viz. sustenance, expansion, strateic acquistoon/

mitives wed/ or to moncetze market opportuaities.

Gearing ratio

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Tl horrowmgs (neleading current maturites of long term debr) T1.40 1900
Poser Casland cash cquivalents 392 5.11
Net debt (A) 67.48 13.80
Torat cquay (B 407.90 398,92
Equity and net debt (C=A+B) 475.38 412,82
[Gearing ratio (A/C) 0.14 §.03

Contingent liabilities and litigations

Contmgent Liabilines A at 31 Mareh 2625 N s at 31 March 2024 Nil).
Capial Commitments = A 31 March 2025 N1 (s at 31 March 2024 Nil ).

Segment [nformation

Suments have been wdentsfied 1 aceordanee with Aecounung Stadard on Scegment Reporting (Ind AS 108} taking mnto account the organization stractures well as
diltcrentual rsks and retums of those sopmonts,

Tl Companyis prisanly cogayed mothe business of providing rental services to its customers. Accordingly, the entire operations of the Company are governed by the sune
ot ol csands rad thas, st opertes nasigle primas segment.

L Compane s hustiess s ogganieed o two ey geograplue segmonts, Revenaes aee attributable to individual geagraphic segments based upon the jocuon of custoniers,

Lurthor v tonns ot paragraph 31 or Ind A8 TOR, ety wide diselosures have been presenied 0 e consolidated financial statements.

(1305 apace Das foer L2fe bak intentionalhy)
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41

32

Information under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013
There are no myvestments ot loan given or guaransee provided or security gven by the Company other than the investments and loans stared under note 7 and nose 10
in these financial statements, which have been made preduminantly for the putpose of business,

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 % Change
Current ratio Current Agseis Current Liabilities 3.36 5.84 42.31% 0
Drebi Tiguity Rado Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.18 0.05 267.47%
Debt Service Coverage ratio Harnings for debr service = Net Debt service = Interest & 4,02 6.78 ~40.63% 0
profit after taxes + Non-cash Lunse Payments + Principal
operating expenses Repayments
Rerurn oa Fquity ratio Net Profivs alter taxes — Preference | Average Sharcholder's Hyuity 0.03 0.04 29.28%
Bividend
mlm'_\' Furnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 3.97 295 347006
Trade Reeenvable Turmnover Ratio Neteredit sales © Gross eredit sales | Werage Trade Recebvable 4.35 2.54 71.25%
sales return
Trade Payable Turnover Rano Neteredit purchases = Gross eredit [Average Trade Payables 35.94 11.02 226,167 0
purchascs — purchase retrn
et Capital Turnover Rato Net sales = Total sales - sales verern [Working capital = Cuerent i.38 074 8O3
aszets — Current habilivies
et Profic rano Net Prafit Nt sales = “Toral sales - sakes 003 n.ng 61.15%
- retum
Return on Capiial Haployed Farnings before inrerest and taxes [Capital Employed = Tangible (.04 0.06 18,83
Net Worth + Total Debe -
Deferred Tax Asscis
Rerurn on Investment Interest (Fnance [ncome) Investment 0.03 0.04 28.66" o

(Thix space has been left blank intenfionall))
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13 OTILER STATUTORY INFORMATION
43.1 “There s no balance for capieal work n progress ax at 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 01 Apri) 2022, therefore no disclosure regarding CWIT aging
Juis been gven.

43.2 “I'he Company does not have any transactions and sutstanding balances dusing the current as well previous year with Companies strack off under section 248 of the
Compantes e, 2013 or seenon 561 of Compames Aet, 1956,

43.3 Previous vear's figuares have been regrouped ‘reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year’s classificanon.

43,4 The Code on Social Security, 2020 “the Code™) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment recerved Presudential assent in September
2020, Subscquently, the Mintstry of Labour and Hmployment had released the draft tules on the aforementioned Code, Towever, the same is yet to be norified. The
Company will evaluate the impace and make necessary adjustmednts to the financial statements in the pedod when the Code will be notified and will come into effect.

43.5 "Uhe Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been imtiated or pending agatnst the Corapany for holding any Benami property.

43.6 The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be repistered with Registear of Companies (ROC) Leyond the statutory perstod.

43.7 “The Company has ot traded or mvested in Crypto curreney or Virtoal Cursency duting the financial year.

43.8 Ul Company has not any excluded such rransacrion which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sutrendered or disclosed as income during the year
i the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey of any ather relevant provisions of the [ncome T'ax Act, 1961,

44 The Company has aot been declared a wilfub defauler by any bank or financial institution or other lender (as defined under the Companies \ct, 2013) or consortium
thereof, m accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of Tndia

44.1 “Uhe Company has not received any fund from any person or any earicy, nchiding foreign catitics (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writmg
or uthers e that the Company shall:
. dereetly or indirectly lend or myest mother persons or entities ddentified in any manner whatsoever by 2 or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Benefictaries);
i

1. provide ant guarantee, seeartey or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Bencficiares.

442 Ihe Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any person or any entity, including forcign entities intermediaries) with the unde
intermuediary shall:

anding that the

. directly or mdireety lead or invest in other peesons of entittes identified i any mannet whatsoever by 2 or on behalf of the Company (Cltimaee Beneficiaries); o
1. provide any guarantee, secatity of the Ike to or on behalt of the uldmate heacticiatics,

15 Lhe Mmsan of Corporate AMfairs (MO hax preseribed a new requirement for companics under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companics vecounts) Rules, 20144
mserted Iy the Compantes (Aceounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring compantes which uses accounting software for maintaining its hooks of account, shall use
only sueh accounting soltware which has feature of recording audit trail of cach and every transaction, creating an et log of cach change made in the buoks of
account along wath the date when such changes were made and ensuring chat the andit trafl cannot be dizabled.

e Compan uses i accounting saftware for mamtaiing 13 books of account, where the fearute of recotding audit trail has been uperated throughout the year for
Al relevant trasactions recorded in the softwars, except for the penod 01 April 2023 1o 15 Aprti 2023

46 Post reporting date events

o adjustng or significant non-adjusting events have occurred benween March 31, 2025 and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

For G A R U 1> & Associates On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Formcry known as Rag Girikshut & Associate AVA International Private Limited
Charterghl Accountants
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